Technical University of Denmark



# Monte Carlo superposition calculations of resonance integrals in a reactor cell

Kirkegaard, Peter

Publication date: 1970

Document Version Publisher's PDF, also known as Version of record

Link back to DTU Orbit

*Citation (APA):* Kirkegaard, P. (1970). Monte Carlo superposition calculations of resonance integrals in a reactor cell. (Risø-M; No. 1257).

# DTU Library

Technical Information Center of Denmark

### **General rights**

Copyright and moral rights for the publications made accessible in the public portal are retained by the authors and/or other copyright owners and it is a condition of accessing publications that users recognise and abide by the legal requirements associated with these rights.

• Users may download and print one copy of any publication from the public portal for the purpose of private study or research.

- You may not further distribute the material or use it for any profit-making activity or commercial gain
- You may freely distribute the URL identifying the publication in the public portal

If you believe that this document breaches copyright please contact us providing details, and we will remove access to the work immediately and investigate your claim.

# A.E.K.Risø

Risø - M - 1257

	Title and author(s)	Date July 1970
125	Monte Carlo Superposition Calculations	Department or group
	of Resonance Integrals in a Reactor $C \in \mathbb{N}$	Reactor Physics
Σ	by	Department
-	Peter Kirkegaard	
ise Se		Group's own registration
2		number(s)
	52 pages + 0 tables + 3 illustrations	
	Abstract	Copies to
	A description is given of a computer program, AEK P-598 MCSUP. which calculates the resonance	Standard distribution
	integral for a single resonance in a square reactor	
	lattice cell, containing a cylindrical fuel zone sur-	
	rounded by a moderator zone. The fuel zone contains	
	only one nuclide type, while the moderator may be	
	composed by several nuclide types. Scattering inter-	
	ference and Doppler broadening is included.	
	MCSUP is a Monte Carlo code based on the super-	
	position method devised by Spanier and Gelbard. The	
	code is well-suited for calculations on isolated fuel	
	TOUB. It IS WITTEN IN FORTHAN IV.	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Abstract to
	Available on request from the Library of the Danish Atomic Energy Commission (Atomenergikommissionens Bibliotek), Riss, Roskilde, Denmark Telephone; (03) 35 51 01, ext. 334, telex; 5072.	

#### CONTENTS

	,	Page
1.	Introduction	3
2.	Statement of the Problem	3
3.	The Resonance Cross Sections	4
4.	The Superposition Principle	6
5.	Monte Carlo Sampling in MCSUP	13
	5.1. Sampling of Initial Energy	13
	5.2. Surface Source Sampling	14
	5.3. Coveyou Sampling from Truncated Exponential	14
	5.4. Conventional Transport Sampling	15
	5.5. Choice of Estimator	15
	5.6. Statistical Processing	16
6.	Calculation with the MCSUP Program	16
	6. 1. Preparation of Input Data	18
	6.2. Interpretation of Output	17
	.6.3. Solution of Various Problems by MCSUP	18
7.	Possible Generalisations	20
8.	Summary and Conclusions	20
9.	Acknowledgement	21
10.	References	21
11.	Appendix I: MCSUP Data Sheet	24
12.	Appendix II: Result for Sample Problem	25
13.	Appendix III: Computer Code Print-out	26
14.	Appendix IV: Escape Probability P for Infinite Cylinder	. 3.e . <b>41.</b>
15.	Appendix V1. Puel-to-Madematar Collision Probability Pf	
16,2	Angelin VII A BARRING INCOMERCIAN ROLLING	
	anure probability 1-p, or, equivalently, the consume integrals f	lan jat
17.	Appendix VII: A Yest Exponential Houtine	
18,	Appendix VIII: Optimization of Computer Time for the Fran	
	p anp - and the sublices	
- N		No an
an a		

# We regret that some of the pages in the microfiche copy of this report may not be up to the proper legibility standards, even though the best possible copy was used for preparing the master fiche.

: • ·

1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 -1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 -

т. -

- 3 -

#### Page

19.	Aprendix IX: Computer Dependent Features of MCSUP	51
	19.1. The Timing Routine	51
	19.2. The Random Number Generator	51
	19.3. Input/Output Units	52

#### Figures

In a forthcoming report, Mikkelsen<sup>1)</sup> describes a computer program RESAB which carries out a multigroup calculation of the resonance absorption and flux spectrum in a reactor cell, using collision probability technique. His calculation scheme relies on the validity of certain approximations making possible very efficient computing. In developing such an approximate model there arises a natural need of checking the model or parts of it against some exact calculation method; in view of the complexity of the problem Monte Carlo seems to be the only practical way of performing such reference calculations.

This paper describes a Monte Carlo FORTRAN IV computer program, AEK P-598 MCSUP, designed to calculate resonance integrals by the method of superposition. The superposition principle was developed and first put into practical operation by Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2,3)</sup>. MCSUP works fairly efficiently for most problems, and it is possible that it may be valuable also for other purposes than comparative.

#### 2. STATEMENT OF THE PROBLEM (18 4) 5 4 (5

Consider an infinite-cylindrical reactor lattice cell with a crass section as shown in fig. 1. The heterogeneous resonance sequers problemic, idealized to a two-zone configuration, the cladding zone being neglected. The fuel cylinder radius is a, and the lattice pitch is denoted d. The cross sectional areas of the two zones are  $A_1 = \pi a^2$  and  $A_2 = d^2 - A_1$ .

The fuel zone contains only one isotope is a U-2381 moderator may be composed of several modifie types. Scattering in the fuel is assumed to proceed isotropicly in the L-system or in the CM-system depending on the user's choice. No absorption is allowed in the moderator. The cell is assupport to be assorption is allowed in the moderator. The cell is assupport to be assorption is allowed in the moderator. The cell is assupport to be assorption is allowed in the moderator. The cell is assupport to be assorption is allowed in the moderator. The cell is assupport to be assorption is allowed in the moderator. The cell is assupport to be assorption is allowed in the moderator. The cell is assupport to be a supported as the moderator is the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of the second dependence of the second dependence of the interval of the second dependence of - 4 -

where  $\langle \xi \sigma_g \rangle$  is the average slowing-down power of the cell per absorber atom<sup>9</sup>.

The energy band taken into account is the interval  $E_L \in E \in E_u$  containing the resonance energy  $B_0$ . We assume that the flux at the upper energy cut-off is an unperturbed 1/E-flux. The resonance absorption mechanism to be considered here concerns a single resolved resonance. The resonance cross sections are expressed by the single level Breit-Wigner formulas and include the scattering interference and Doppler broadening.

The scattering cross section of the moderator is assumed to be independent of the energy.

#### 3. THE RESONANCE CROSS SECTIONS

The total microscopic cross section  $\sigma_t$  of the resonance absorber may be written as a sum of a resonance cross section and an energy independent potential scattering cross section:

 $\sigma_{+} = \sigma_{\mu} + \sigma_{\mu}$ 

'σ\_= σ\_ + σ\_\_\_

(2)

en men al la ser anno a lamana d'alte este se

 $\left\lfloor \frac{IR}{\left(0\right)} - \right\rfloor qxy = q(0)$ 

The resonance cross section itself is composed by an absorbing and a scattering component

The two www.continue (4,1 theor is that a bot of noiseseque ball allow nator may be composed to a set al angle theory of noiseseque ball allow applied to proceed astrophily in the first theory and the gound (3) pathration featrophily in the L-system or if the is of experimentary on the user's choice. No absurption is allowed in the moderator. The cell is assumed to be a part of an infaile where is interest of the first above flocting boundary craditions. The problem is to resonance integral, HI, of capture probability 1-p, or, equivalently, the resonance integral, HI, of the cell. These quantities are connected by the quantion 9, 10) u + iv = w is the value of the complex error function corresponding to the argument 2  $\eta \frac{E-E_T}{T}$  + i $\eta$ . The complex error function may be defined by <sup>11</sup>

$$\operatorname{erf}(\mathbf{z}) = \operatorname{erf}(\mathbf{x} + i\mathbf{y}) = \exp(-\mathbf{z}^2) \begin{bmatrix} 1 + \frac{2i}{\sqrt{\mathbf{x}}} \int_{0}^{\mathbf{z}} \exp(t^2) dt \end{bmatrix}$$
(7)

 $\Gamma_n$ ,  $\Gamma_\gamma$  and  $\Gamma$  are the neutron, radiative and total widths of the level, respectively. The parameter  $\sigma_0$  is the value of  $\sigma_r$  for  $E = E_0$ . It can be shown that <sup>1</sup>

$$_{\rm o} = 2.603 \cdot 10^6 \left(\frac{1.00897 + A}{A}\right)^2 \cdot \frac{\Gamma_{\rm n}}{\Gamma} \frac{1}{E_{\rm o}}$$
(8)

The remaining parameters to be defined is A, the stomic weight of the absorber: k is Boltzmann's constant  $k = 0.61 \cdot 10^{-5} \text{ eV/}^{\circ}\text{K}$ , and T is the absolute temperature. u and v are connected with the well-known formulas  $\phi(\theta, x)$  and  $\chi(\theta, x)$  defined in Dresner<sup>4</sup>), by the relations ♦ (θ, x) = √π η u :: (9) 1.2.195.230 Y(8.x) = 2/7 = Y in the second state and the second second state (10) RICETAT the second second for the contract where **EXAMPLE 1**  $\left[ \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2} +$ (with) + & milE, to 11.27

And P Phin Man in American, which was not the second and the secon

#### 4. THE SUPERPOSITION PRINCIPLE

In this section we shall mainly follow Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2</sup> in giving a brief exposition of the superposition principle when applied to resonance absorption calculations.

The superposition principle states that the flux produced by the sum of two sources is the sum of the fluxes produced, separately, by each source. This follows immediately from the linearity of the transport equation. The idea is now that the problem to be solved ("problem a") is superimposed by another problem ("problem  $\beta$ ") in such a way that the sum problem has a simple analytical solution. Hence, the Monte Carlo work is confined to problem  $\beta$ , and sometimes this method of attack leads to significant reduction of variance.

This basic approach has to be extended a little in order to yield an efficient model for resonance calculations. Consider again fig. 1 showing the fuel zone  $R_{II}$  and the moderator zone  $R_{II}$  with a reflecting boundary. As before we wish to solve problem a. The source  $Q_{ij}(E, r)$  in this problem is a slowing-in density in both zones from above  $E_{ii}$ . Problem a has the solution (angular flux)  $F_{a} = F_{a}(E, r, \omega)$ , where E is energy, r position, and  $\omega$  the unit vector of direction. Above  $E_{ij}$ ,  $F_{a}$  is assumed to be the unperturbed 1/E-flux. We normalize in such a way that  $F_{a} = \frac{1}{4\pi E}$  for  $E = E_{ii}$ .

In the following it is essential to distinguish between resonance and potential scattering in the fuel. The macroscopic fuel cross section is therefore considered as composed by one absorption and two scattering terms;

$$\mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}_{\mathbf{f}}}(\mathbf{E}) = \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{a}\mathbf{f}}(\mathbf{E}) + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{S}\mathbf{f}}(\mathbf{E}) = \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{a}\mathbf{f}}(\mathbf{E}) + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{S}\mathbf{r}\mathbf{f}}(\mathbf{E}) + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}} = \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{D} \cap \mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{D} \cap \mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} + \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf$$

1.1.1.1.1.1

sounds in the bid with the set of the transfort a setted were the for computing the complex error function, developed by Neltran The absorber cross sections are calculated at 100 and the set with the interval R. & E & E, before the Manke contents (1) for self starts.

in the fuel. No source is present in the moderator. Lot the problem

have the solution  $F_{B}$ .

the sum problem of a and  $\beta$  has the solution  $F_T$ . Now, it is not  $F_T$  itself that has a simple expression but that part of it,  $F_{Tu}$ , which has not yet undergone resonance scatterings. In fact,

$$F_{Tu}(E,r,\omega) = \frac{1}{4\pi E}$$
,  $E_{L} \leftarrow E \leftarrow E_{u}$  (13)

To see this we write down the transport equations satisfied by  $F_{\rm Tu}$  in  $R_{\rm T}$  and  $R_{\rm TI}$  :

$$\mathbf{L} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{Tu}}(\mathbf{E}, \mathbf{r}, \boldsymbol{\omega}) = \int \mathbf{d} \boldsymbol{\omega}' \int_{\mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{L}}}^{\mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{u}}} \mathbf{d} \mathbf{E}' \boldsymbol{\Sigma}_{\mathbf{Pf}}(\boldsymbol{\omega} \boldsymbol{\omega}', \mathbf{E}' - \mathbf{E}, \mathbf{r}) \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{Tu}}(\mathbf{E}', \mathbf{r}, \boldsymbol{\omega}')$$

$$+ \frac{1}{4\pi} Q_{\mathbf{E}}(\mathbf{E}, \mathbf{r}) + \frac{1}{4\pi} Q_{\mathbf{f}}(\mathbf{E}) , \quad \mathbf{r} \in \mathbf{R}_{\mathbf{I}}$$

$$\mathbf{d} = \mathbf{L} \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}\mathbf{u}}(\mathbf{E}, \mathbf{r}, \boldsymbol{\omega}) = \int \mathbf{d} \cdot \boldsymbol{\omega} = \int \mathbf{d} \cdot \boldsymbol{\omega} = \int \mathbf{d} \cdot \mathbf{e} \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{L}} \mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{S}}(\boldsymbol{\omega} \cdot \boldsymbol{\omega}^{\dagger}, \mathbf{E}^{\dagger} - \mathbf{E}, \mathbf{r}) \mathbf{F}_{\mathbf{T}\mathbf{u}}(\mathbf{E}^{\dagger}, \mathbf{r}, \boldsymbol{\omega}^{\dagger}) = \\ + \frac{1}{4\pi} \mathbf{Q}_{\mathbf{S}}(\mathbf{E}, \mathbf{r}) , \qquad \mathbf{r} \in \mathbf{R}_{\mathbf{H}}$$
(14)

 $\Sigma_{\mathbf{pf}}(\omega,\omega',\mathbf{E'} \rightarrow \mathbf{E},\mathbf{r})$  is the differential cross section for potential scattering in the fuel. The operator L is defined by

where G, of course, stands for a scalar flux and I symbolizes the twodifferenties, their region R<sub>1</sub>. The connection verwein M<sub>1</sub>, and F190.6 L

#### Otherwise the notation is conventional

(02) In (14) all acattering cross sections are entry to the section of (7) and (17) are set of (17) are set

$$\mathbf{F}_{a} = \mathbf{F}_{Tu} + \mathbf{F}_{TS} - \mathbf{F}_{\beta} = \frac{1}{4\pi E} + \mathbf{F}_{TS} - \mathbf{F}_{\beta}$$
(16)

It is now practical to split up  $F_{\beta}$  into four components, according to the history of the flux. Let

$$F_{\beta} = F_{\beta}$$
 (unscattered before exit, unreturned)  
+  $F_{\beta}$  (unscattered before exit, returned)  
+  $F_{\beta}$  (resonance scattered before exit)  
+  $F_{\beta}$  (potential scattered before exit), or

$$\mathbf{F}_{\beta} = \mathbf{F}_{\beta u u} + \mathbf{F}_{\beta u r} + \mathbf{F}_{\beta s r} + \mathbf{F}_{\beta s p}$$
(17)

"Exit" means here absorption in or escape from the fuel. By (16) and (17),

$$F_{a} = \frac{1}{4\pi E} - F_{\beta u u} - F_{\beta u r} - F_{\beta s p} + F_{TS} - F_{\beta s r}$$
(18)

We are interested in calculating the resonance capture probability 1-p, or, equivalently, the mean absorption rate per ccm in the fuel

$$\mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{f}} = \frac{1}{\mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{f}}} \int_{\mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{f}}}^{\mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{u}}} d\mathbf{E} \int_{\mathbf{I}} d\mathbf{r} \, \boldsymbol{\Sigma}_{\mathbf{af}} \, \boldsymbol{\mathscr{O}}_{\mathbf{a}}(\mathbf{E}, \mathbf{r}) \,, \qquad (19)$$

where  $\emptyset$ , of course, stands for a scalar flux and I symbolizes the twodimensional fuel region  $R_1$ . The connection between  $A_1$  and  $P_2$  is I

$$\langle \xi \Sigma_{g} \rangle = \frac{NA_{1} \langle \xi \sigma_{g} \rangle}{A_{1} + A_{2}}$$
 (31)

where N is the number density of the absorber. Defining

$$I'_{o} = \frac{1}{A_{1}} \int_{E_{L}}^{E_{u}} dE \int_{I} dr \Sigma_{af}(E) \left[ \frac{1}{E} - \mathscr{O}_{\beta uu}(E, r) \right], \qquad (22)$$

$$I_{1}' = \frac{1}{A_{1}} \int_{E_{L}}^{E_{u}} dE \int_{I} dr \, \Sigma_{af}(E) \, \theta_{\beta ur}(E, r) , \qquad (23)$$

$$I_{2} = \frac{1}{A_{1}} \int_{E_{L}}^{E_{u}} dE \int dr \Sigma_{af}(E) \mathscr{O}_{\beta Sp}(E, r) , \qquad (24)$$

$$J = \frac{1}{A_{1}} \int_{E_{L}}^{E_{U}} dE \int_{I} dr \Sigma_{af}(E) \left[ \mathscr{O}_{TS}(E, r) - \mathscr{O}_{\beta Sr} \right]$$
(25)

10%

then

$$\begin{array}{l} \begin{array}{c} \mathcal{O}(\mathbf{x}_{1}^{*}) = \mathbf{I}_{1} \left[ \mathbf{I}_{1} \left[ \mathbf{I} \left[ \begin{array}{c} \mathcal{O}(\mathbf{x}_{1}^{*}) = \mathbf{I}_{1} \left[ \mathbf{I} \left[ \mathbf{I} \left[ \begin{array}{c} \mathcal{O}(\mathbf{x}_{1}^{*}) = \mathbf{I}_{1} \left[ \mathbf{I} \left[ \mathbf$$

- 9 -

It can be shown that  $I_1^i$  is the absorption rate produced by an outgoing source on the surface of the fuel

$$Q_{1P}(E, \omega) = \frac{\Sigma_{rf}(E)}{4\pi E} \frac{\mu (1 - \exp(-1 \cdot \Sigma_{Tf}(E)))}{\Sigma_{Tf}(E)}$$
(28)

Here,  $\mu = \omega \cdot n \rangle 0$ , n being the outward unit normal at the surface point P, and 1 is the backward intersection path from P in the fuel (due to the scattering interference,  $Q_{1P}(E, \omega)$  may become negative at some energies, this tending to increase variance somewhat). Integrating (28) over directions gives  $Q'_1(E) = \int Q_{1P}(E, \omega) d\omega$ , which is proportional to the density function for selecting starting energies. It follows that <sup>2</sup>)

$$Q_1'(\mathbf{E}) = \frac{\Sigma_{\mathbf{rf}}(\mathbf{E})}{\mathbf{E}} \cdot \mathbf{P}_0(\mathbf{E})$$
(29)

The Monte Carlo calculation of  $I'_1$  includes such starters which have been absorbed on their first collision. This contribution will in our model be deleted from  $I'_1$  and included in the deterministic term  $I'_0$ . In other words, we write

$$I'_{0} - I'_{1} = I_{0} - I_{1}$$
 (30)

where now  $I_0$  is to be evaluated deterministicly and  $I_1$  by Monte Carlo. One can show that<sup>2</sup>

$$I_{o} = \int_{E_{L}}^{E_{u}} \frac{dE}{E} \Sigma_{af}(E) \left[ P^{*}(E) + \frac{\Sigma_{Pf}}{\Sigma_{Tf}(E)} (1 - P^{*}(E)) \right]$$
(31)

where P is the collision probability<sup>2, 6)</sup> from fuel to moderator. P is discussed in Appendix V, and the quadrature evaluation of J in Apin discussed in Appendix V, and the quadrature evaluation of J in Apin a statistic discussion of the state of the state of the state of the state end in Appendix V, and the state of the st

$$\mathbf{Q}_{1}(\mathbf{E}) = \frac{\Sigma_{\mathbf{rf}}(\mathbf{E})}{\mathbf{E}} \left[ \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{o}}(\mathbf{E}) - \frac{\Sigma_{\mathbf{af}}(\mathbf{E})}{\Sigma_{\mathbf{rf}}(\mathbf{E})} \left( \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{o}}(\mathbf{E}) - \mathbf{P}^{*}(\mathbf{E}) \right) \right]$$
(32)

Hence, to sample  $I_i$  we have to pick the starting energy from (32) and then sample an  $\oplus$  from (28). How these steps are carried out in detail is discussed in sec. 5. However, if a starter is absorbed on its first collision, it is rejected: a new  $\oplus$  is sampled from (26) without changing E.

The next term in (26),  $I_2$ , is generated by neutrons which are potential scattered before exit. The mean rate of such scatterings are

$$Q_2(E) = \frac{\Sigma_{rf}(E)}{E} (1 - P_0(E)) \frac{\Sigma_{Pf}}{\Sigma_{rf}(E)}$$
(33)

From  $|Q_2(E)|$  we pick a starting energy. Then a starting point P is selected uniformly in the fuel and an  $\circ$  with isotropic distribution. If the starter leaves the fuel on its first flight it is rejected: without changing E we sample a new P and a new  $\circ$ . Otherwise we regard its first collision as a potential scattering. Subsequent sampling proceed conventionally.

The last term to be computed by Monte Carlo is J (eq. (25)). We show that this term requires two Monte Carlos. Let us define an approximate the second statement of the second

FAS FTS FSF

(34)

(a) By writing down the transport equations for P<sub>TS</sub> and P<sub>pSr</sub> one sees that: P<sub>AS</sub> satisfies the equations its) again to the equations at lating 2-subspace of the set of the set of the state of the set o

alfory uses a successful dealers, the the standard of the standard standar

$$LF_{\Delta S}(E, r, \omega) = \int d \omega' \int_{E_{L}}^{E_{u}} dE' \Sigma_{S}(\omega, \omega', E' - E, r) F_{\Delta S}(E', r, \omega'),$$
  
$$F \in R_{\Pi}$$
(35)

Hence,  $F_{\Delta S}$  is generated by resonance scattering in  $R_I$  in the flux  $F_{Tu}$ - $F_{puu}$ . One can show that this latter quantity itself satisfies a transport equation,

$$L\left[F_{Tu}(E,r,\omega) - F_{\beta uu}(E,r,\omega)\right] = \frac{E_{PI}}{4\pi E}, \quad r \in R_{I}$$
(36)

and

$$F_{Tu}(E, r_{P}, \omega) - F_{\beta uu}(E, r_{P}, \omega) = \frac{1}{4\pi E}$$
(37)

where  $r_{p}$  is a point of the fuel-moderator interface, and w is an inward direction (w.n  $\langle 0 \rangle$ ).

Eqs. (36) and (37) reflect the fact that  $F_{Tu}-F_{fun}$  is produced by the joint action of a uniform isotropic volume source  $E_{Pl}/4\pi E$  and an inward-directed surface source with strength  $\approx n/4\pi E$ .

This leads to the following procedure for the calculation of the corresponding components,  $I_3$  and  $I_4$ , of J. In the  $I_3$ -case we write

 $\mathbf{Q}_{\mathbf{S}}(\mathbf{E}) = \frac{\mathbf{\Sigma}_{\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{f}}}}{\mathbf{E}} \left(1 - \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{0}}(\mathbf{E})\right) = \frac{\mathbf{\Sigma}_{\mathbf{S}\mathbf{T}_{\mathbf{f}}}(\mathbf{E})}{\mathbf{\Sigma}_{\mathbf{T}\mathbf{f}}(\mathbf{E})} = 0 \quad \text{in the set of a set of the set of t$ 

select an energy from  $|Q_3(E)|$  and proceed just as in the  $I_2$ -case (cf. eq. (33) et seq.), but here we force the starter to resonance-scatter in the fuely  $(A_1)_{2} \otimes (A_1, R_1) \otimes (A_2, R_1)_{2} \otimes (A_1, R_2)_{2} \otimes (A_1, R$ 

energia en la contra la contra de la contr La contra de la contr

select an energy from  $|Q_{ij}(t)|$  and a starting point from a distribution willow over the definition. The starting dependence is a words, b

otherwise this sampling is quite analogous to the  $I_1$ -case. The first collision is forced to be a resonance scattering in  $R_T$ . Hereafter, the sampling proceeds conventionally.

To recapitulate, we have expressed the rate of absorption  $A_{f}$  as a sum of five terms

$$A_{f} = I_{0} - I_{1} - I_{2} + I_{3} + I_{4}$$
 (40)

where  $I_0$  can be evaluated by quadrature, but  $I_1$ ,  $I_2$ ,  $I_3$ ,  $I_4$  each requires one Monte Carlo. In the following section we discuss some problems in connection with the Monte Carlo sampling.

#### 5. MONTE CARLO SAMPLING IN MCSUP

#### 5.1. Sampling of Initial Energy

From the formulas (32), (33), (38), (39), it is seen that the Monte Carlo for each of the four terms  $I_1$ ,  $I_2$ ,  $I_3$ ,  $I_4$ , requires an initial energy sampling from a density function proportional to some known function QCD, How this is done is shown schematically in fig. 2. Q(E) is approximated by a step function corresponding to a division of the energy interval  $E_L = E_u$ in 1000 equal subintervals (only 8 shown in fig. 2) with step builds equal to Q(E) taken in the subinterval midpoints. This matches the discrete cross, section evaluation mentioned in sec. 3. The step function is normalised to a density function and is next converted to a distribution function F(E) of the polygon type. After selection of a random number  $\xi$ . E is given by  $F^{-1}(E)$ . To increase speed we negative to a distribution function  $F(E) = f^{-1}(E)$ . To increase speed we negative to a division of the interval  $0 < \zeta < 1$  in 1000 equal subintervals (only 8 shown in fig. 2). The phase  $E_{10} = F^{-1}(\zeta_{10})$  are calculated and stored before the Manie Carlo is executed. The start representation  $\xi = 0$  and  $\xi = 0$  is a start of the interval  $0 < \zeta < 1$  in  $f^{-1}(\xi_{10}) = 0$  and  $\xi = 0$ . The representation  $\xi = 0$  are the start of the interval  $\xi = 0$  and  $\xi = 0$ .

"A de pointed out in 10. 2 the technique of himshelt' window " any a appried het d'hit's with the same a second with the second of the second ball of the second balo - 14 -

#### 5.2. Surface Source Sampling

Having selected the initial energy one turns to sample the source position and direction. Starters of types 2 and 3 (cf. sec. 4) have an isotropic and uniform volume distribution which is easily sampled, while the types 1 and 4 have an outgoing, resp. ingoing surface source distribution, which is considered in more detail now. As the surface positions are selected from a uniform distribution, we need only discuss the direction sampling. Because the sampling is quite similar in the two cases, we consider only the outgoing source (type 1).

The relevant sampling formula is (28), which now, when position and energy is known, reduces to

$$Q(\omega) = \mu \left[1 - \exp(-l(\omega) \cdot \Sigma)\right], \qquad (41)$$

apart from a constant factor. As before,  $\mu = \omega \cdot n$ , and  $l(\omega)$  is the backwards intersection path in the fuel.

A straightforward way would be to sample \* from either an isotropic or a cosine distribution and adjust the weight of the starter according to (41). Finctuating weights have, however, a deleterious influence on variance, unless the fluctuations reflect the importance of the events<sup>2</sup>).

A better alternative seems here to be a cosine sampling combined with rejection<sup>2, 19)</sup>. As we then sample from a distribution proportional  $\omega;$ , the quantity in square brackets in (41) governs the rejection. Hence we pick a random number  $\zeta$  and accepts or rejects the starter according to the events 1 - exp(-1(w), 2)  $\gtrsim \zeta$ . In case of rejection a new w-sampling is carried out. The efficiency for this rejection is supposed to be high, because the rod for most initial energies is fairly black <sup>2</sup>.

<sup>16</sup> 5. 5. Covey on Sampling from Truncated Exponential as mentioned in sec. A state of the second where 1 is the path from the source point to the rod intersection point along the flight. With a random number  $\zeta$ , the standard sampling formula corresponding to (42) becomes

$$\mathbf{x} = -\frac{1}{\Sigma} \log \left[ 1 - \zeta (1 - \exp(-\Sigma \mathbf{I})) \right]$$
(43)

involving both a log- and an exp-calculation. Here, an alternative sampling formula due to Coveyou is used <sup>2</sup>, <sup>16</sup>, <sup>20</sup>.

$$\mathbf{x} = \frac{1}{\Sigma} \quad \text{UDR} \left[ \frac{-\log \zeta}{\Sigma 1} \right]$$
(44)

UDR stands for the undivided remainder, e.g. UDR  $\left(\frac{13.83}{6}\right) = 1.83$ .

#### 5.4. Conventional Transport Sampling

Apart from the special methods discussed above and the choice of estimator (see 5.5), the sampling of the neutron transport and energy degradation processes elapses quite conventionally and will not be discussed here; details will be found elsewhere  $^{2, 14, 16}$ . However, it should be quite easy to follow the various steps on the computer code print-out reproduced in Appendix III; it is hoped that the rather numerous comments will facilitate this work.

#### 5.5. Choice of Estimator

Before the program reached its final form, some experimentation was done to find an efficient estimator for the resonance absorptions. Three estimators were tried standard in the accurate of the moment outgo and by goin

and the constantion

1) The Wesov estimator<sup>2)</sup> with forbidden absorption and corresponding weight reductions at collisions. History termination only by mean Managements<sup>2</sup>1. Construction of the second structure of th track length estimator refers to an analog random walk process. Scoring takes place every time a neutron collides in, or escape from the fuel, after the following rule:

- a) When a neutron starts at the fuel point P (a source or scattering point, or a point on the fuel boundary) and thereafter escapes uncollided at E or scatters at S, then the scoring is  $\Sigma_{g}$  d where d is the track length PE or PS.
- b) When a neutron starts at the fuel point P and is absorbed in the fuel at A (whereby the history is terminated), then the scoring is

$$\frac{\Sigma_a}{\Sigma_t} \cdot \frac{1 - \exp(-\Sigma_t d) \left\{ \Sigma_t d + 1 \right\}}{1 - \exp(-\Sigma_t d)}$$
(45)

where d = FE, E denoting the hypothetic escape point if no collision had occurred. (45) is constructed by averaging the estimator  $\Sigma_{a}$ . PA over all possible A<sup>2</sup>.

#### 5.6. Statistical Processing

In order to carry out a statistical analysis of the Monte Carlo data, histories are collected in groups of 500 each. How many groups that are processed depends on the user's choice of computing time (see 6. 1). Group averages are calculated, and from these a final average and a sample variance is found (a confidence analysis based on Student's distribution is not carried out). Finally, the "statistical quality" Q is calculated (see 5. 3).

The statistical procedure has to be modified a little by the introduction of the optimization device discussed in Appendix VIII.

when have a set of the set of the

6. CALCULATION WITH THE MCSUE PROGRAM

"mate attact a satisfier and the

#### 6.1. Preparation of Imput Data

3) The modified track length to the internation of the start of and train the second at 10 and the second of the second s

pure hydrogen as the moderator, and anisotropic moderstor scattering is taken into account. Format and type of data items are derived from the sheet. The first item is the problem no; a negative problem no. stops the computations. The two integers in the next line are: random initial number (any nine-digit integer will do) and the number m of different nuclide types in the moderator (here m = 1). The next two lines in the sheet contain real numbers; they are (in the notation previously used):  $E_{0}$ ,  $E_{u}$ ,  $E_{L}$ ,  $\sigma_{p}$ ,  $\Gamma_n$ ,  $\Gamma_v$ , A, T, a, d, number density of absorber x 10<sup>24</sup>, maximum time tmax. All energies are in eV. tmax is given in minutes and refers to the time spent in the Monte Carlo phase of the problem; to be safe, the user should not choose a  $t_{max}$  greater than  $t_{iob} - 2$  where  $t_{iob}$  is the maximum time in minutes stated on the job request card (this rule is relevant for calculations on the IBM 7094 at NEUCC in Denmark; modifications may be necessary for other computing centers). Hereafter come m data lines, one for each michide type in the moderator. Each line contains three real mimbers and one integer: atomic weight, cross section (barn), number density  $\times 10^{24}$ , and the scattering mode I which is 0 for isotropic scattering on that nuclide and 1 for anisotropic scattering.

As here only a single job is to be executed, one has written -1 in the last line.

#### 6.2. Interpretation of Output

TOPI

The result for the sample problem given by the input data in Appendix I appears in Appendix II.

The output interpretation should follow immediately from the text given. It remains only to define the "statistical quality" Q:

Q = Hermonic is in an analysis of a state of a state of the second distribution of the state of the state

- 16 -

- 18 -

#### 6.3. Solutions of Various Problems by MCSUP

In the following is collected results for MCSUP calculations for a number of problems. Actually, many of these results have been produced by earlier (and less efficient) versions of the code. Due to these variable conditions, computing times and qualities are not stated.

The computations were cauried out on the IBM 7094 at NEUCC, Lyngby, Denmark.

Three different resonances with the following data were treated:

Resonance no.	Eo	Eu	EL	σp	۲ <sub>n</sub>	۲ <sub>ץ</sub>
1	6.7	14	3	9.5	0.00152	0. 0246
2	36.7	42	32	10.64	0.03114	0. 02633
3	190.34	200	. 180	10, 64	. 0. 15038	0. 02321

Five different moderators with the following data were treated:

Moderator	ሻ		σ <sub>2</sub>	N2	
н	20.4	0. 066633	-	-	
D	3,4	0, 068633	-	-	
С	4,65	0. 080307	-	-	
HaO	20.4	0, 066633	3.8	0.033317	
D <sub>2</sub> 0	. 3, 4	. 0. 066253	.3, 8	0, 033126	

(for compound moderators index 1 refers to the light component). Six configurations with the following data were treated:

Configuration no.	а.	đ
1	0.2	0.3 1
2	1	2
3	1	1.5 VR
4	1.	100 18
5	1.2	120 VR
6	1.7	170

Configurations 4, 5, 6 are, virtually, isolated fuel rods. In all the calculations to be presented, the absorber was assumed to be U-238 (N = 0.046974, T =  $300^{\circ}$ K).

The MCSUP results are given in the table below. Concerning the scattering mode I (cf. 6. 1), this refers for compound moderators to the light components: isotropic scattering is throughout assumed for the heavy component.

Resonance no.	Moderator	I	Config. no.	Resonance integral RI	Standard dev. <sup>7</sup> RI	Escape probability 1-p	Standard dev. <sup>0</sup> 1-p
1	н	1	1	4, 512	0.014	0.11704	0. 00036
1	н	0	2	1.806	0.008	0. 20245	0.00094
1	н	0	3	2.7327	0.0022	0. 075379	0.000058
2	н	0	3	0.9641	0.0084	0. 02683	0.00023
1	н	0	5	2.740	0. 009	0.9471,0-5	0.0031.0-5
3	н	0	3	0.1563	0.0016	0.0043018	0.000453
1	С	0	5	2.638	0.012	0.2101510-3	0.0009710-3
1	С	0	4	2.9327	0.0113	0.2338510-3	0.00090,0-3
1	Н	0	4	3.0319	0.0040	0.1047810-4	0.00014.0-4
1	D	0	4	3.0609	0.0083	0.8750710-4	0.0023810-4
1	н	1	4	3.0793	0.0044	0. 10642	0.0001510-4
2	н	0	4	1.0471	0. 0032	0. 36188 10-5	0.0011110-5
2	н	1	4	1.0557	0. 0030	0. 36485 10-5	0.0010510-5
3	н	0	4	0.15835	0. 00168	0. 5472310-6	0.00581.0-6
1	D <sub>2</sub> O	0	4	3, 0047	0.0043	0. 7908410-4	0.0011410-4
1	н	1	3	2, 7639	0.0055	0. 076240	0.000151
1	н	0	6	2.2492	0.0050	0. 7764010-5	0.00174.0-7
1	н	1	6	2,2887	0.0045	0. 79003 10-5	0.00157.0-7
1	н <sub>2</sub> О	1	. 4	3.0575	0.0042	0.1045010-4	0.0001510-4
1	н <sub>2</sub> О	0	<b>4</b> . 1 ⊂ 6 N	3,0174	0.0045	0. 10319 10-4	0.00015 <sub>10-4</sub>

Later experiences indicated that these estimates of  $\sigma$  were low, in many cases by 30% or more. This underestimation was traced back to the history averaging in groups (cf. 5.6). The earlier MCSUP versions had a group size of 100; due to fluctuations induced by the negative startiers this is too small for the group averages to softle down to the normal distribution as the statistical analysis requires. The present value of 500 has eliminated or greatly reduced the undersetimation of  $\sigma$ .

#### 7. POSSIBLE GENERALISATIONS

The MCSUP program in its present form has a number of limitations, arising from the fact that the code hitherto has served purely comparative purposes. It should, however, be possible to remove some of these limitations fairly easily, if the need occurs.

First, the lattice cell was assumed to be square, but implementation of the hexagonal geometry requires only moderate changes in the main program and in the collision probability subroutine PINCA (cf. Appendix V). The same is true for the inclusion of a cladding zone around the fuel (the RESQ-2 program<sup>3</sup>) works in hexagonal geometry with cladding).

Next, the resonance absorption has been confined to single resonances for a single absorbing nuclide type; one could perhaps desire an extension to a mixture of absorbers with quite general resonance cross sections (probably to be read in from tape). Although possible, this extension would call for fairly much editorial programming.

Inclusion of non-absorbing materials in the fuel region would, in contrast, be very easy.

Concerning the sampling method, a useful extension would be to introduce some sort of correlated sampling, which could improve the possibility of studying differential effects (e.g. the difference between isotropic and anisotropic moderator scattering). A simple way to apply correlated sampling is to force the corresponding histories in the two calculations to begin with the same random number<sup>2</sup>). In any case, correlated sampling requires a considerable extension of the statistical analysis,

#### 8. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

The present report has discussed a Monte Carlo method, based on the superposition principle, devised to calculate the resonance absorption in a reactor lattice cell.

The relevant features of the corresponding FORTRAN IV computer (1) program MCSUP (AEK P-598) have been treated, including instructions for 51) the use of the code,

Italian The results of a serial of problems solved by MCSUP have been presented.

Sugar Black Beach

The experience from the work has been that the calculation efficiency proved to be quite high for most problems.

As MCSUP was intended as a reference program, it is not able to solve general resonance problems; as indicated in sec. 7, however, this restriction could probably be removed by extension of the model in various ways.

#### 9. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The author thanks Jørn Mikkelsen who gave the incitation to much of the work. Further, Mikkelsen has reviewed part of the manuscript and has detected some errors in an earlier version of the computer code.

#### 10. REFERENCES

- 1) J. Mikkelsen, Thesis work to be published as a Risö Report in 1970.
- J. Spanier and E. M. Gelbard, Monte Carlo Principles and Neutron Transport Problems (Addison-Wesley, 1969).
- B. L. Anderson, E. M. Gelbard, and J. Spanier, RESQ-2 A Combined Analytic Monte Carlo Calculation of Resonance Absorption Based on Superposition. Bettis Atomic Power Laboratory, WAPD-TM-665 (March, 1967).
- L. Dresner, Resonance Absorptions in Nuclear Reactors (Pergamon Press, New York, 1960).
- E. M. Gelbard, L. A. Ondis II, and J. Spanier, A New Class of Monte Carlo Estimators. J. SIAM Appl. Math. <u>14</u>, 697 (1966).
- 6) L Carlvik, A method for calculating collision probabilities in general cylindrical geometry and applications to flux distributions and Dancoff factors. U.N. Int. Conf. on the Peaceful Uses of Atomic Emergy, Geneva, 3. 1964. Vol. 2. Geneva 1955, p. 225. Control to Capturel.
- 7) G. N. Lance, Numerical Methods for High Speed Computers (High and Sons Ltd., London, 1960).

- 21 -

- S. Glasstone and M.C. Ediund, The Elements of Nuclear Reactor Theory (Van Nostrand, 1952).
- A. M. Weinberg and E. P. Wigner, The Physical Theory of Neutron Chain Reactors (The University of Chicago, Chicago, 1958).
- V. N. Faddeyeva and N. M. Terent'ev, Tables of values of the function

$$\mathbf{w}(\mathbf{Z}) = \mathbf{e}^{-\mathbf{Z}^2} \left( 1 + \frac{2\mathbf{i}}{\sqrt{\pi}} \int_{0}^{\mathbf{Z}} \mathbf{e^{t}}^2 dt \right)$$

for complex argument (Pergamon Press, Oxford, 1961).

- H. Neltrup, Error Integral with Complex Argument erfcpl(x, y, u, v). Risö Computer Library, SA-84/1, 1965.
- P. Kirkegaard, FORTRAN IV Subroutine for Error Integral with Complex Argument ERFCPL(X, Y, U, V). Risö Computer Library, SF-84, 1970.
- 14) E. D. Cashwell and C. J. Everett, A Practical Manual of the Monte Carlo Method for Random Walk Problems. Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, LA-2120 (1957).
- 15) K. M. Case, F. de Hoffmann, and G. Placzek, Introduction to the Theory of Neutron Diffusion, Vol. I (Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico, 1953).
- 16) P. Kirkegaard, Nuclear Particle Transport with Emphasis on Monte-Carlo and Shielding Calculations. Danish Atomic Energy Commission, Risö Report No. 136 (1966).
- D. B. MacMillan, Comparison of Statistical Estimators for Neutron Monte Carlo Calculations. Nucl. Sci. Eng. 26, 366 (1966).
- 18) M. Abramowitz and L.A. Stegun, Handbook of Mathematical Functions with Formulas, Graphs, and Mathematical Tables (National Bureau of Standards, Applied Mathematics Series 55, 1984).
- 19) H. Kehn, Applications of Monte Carlo. Rand. Corp., AECU-3259 (1954).
- 20) M. Leindörfer, On the Transformation of the Transport Equation for Solving Deep Penetration Problems by the Monte Carlo Method. Trans. Chaimers Univ. Technol., Gothenberg, 286 (1964).

- L. Carlvik and B. Pershagen, The Dancoff correction in various geometries. AE-16 (Stockholm, 1959).
- 22) L. W. Nordheim and G. Kuncir, A Program of Research and Calculations of Resonance Absorption. GA-2527 (1961).
- D. W. Hutchinson, A New Uniform Pseudorandom Number Generator. Com. ACM 9, 432 (1966).
- I. Carlvik, Dancoff Correction in Square and Hexagonal Lattices. AE-257 (Stockholm, 1966).

# 11. APPENDIX I: MCSUP Data Sheet

#### IBM Data Centre Punching Instructions

	Pthe I	tin bug agend			APPLICATION				
	2416-19	10	Poge	of	Scruple	Imput Data	pr 7-598	MCSUP	
	T 10	D .	20	30	40	) 5	0	60 7	0 80
1	en i lorá d				111111111			<u>n Innin</u>	
11	51515151515		111.1						1111111111
*#	KAL FILL	HARLES	1.1.1.1	361111111	91. 5	01.10101115121 11	01. 012461	1 243181.1111	3001.11111
1.1	111111	21-16151817	1111	01.04640411	8				LILLILLI
444	1116111	201.141	1111	01. 1016161613131	111111111				
	มี มี มี มี	Luin	1111				1111111		
	1111111	Luir	1111	111111111					
Ř.	1112:11	Innin							
1	บายังสา								
11	111111	ELLER		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	111111111	1111111			
i.i	<u>LEE E E E E</u> E	L I I I	1111			111111111		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
I.I	LILĖLĖI	Luu	1111						
11	LIBE	him	1111	11111111		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			
1.1	LLL ÅL EL	LIII							
11	เหลี่เม้า	LULL	1111						
1.1	111223.51	11111	1111	1111111		111111111			
i. I.	เมรินั	LILL	1111						
	HI SHI	1	1111	111111111			1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		111111111
1.1	LI LE	Lu u	1.1.1						
i. 1			1111			11111111			
1.1	LLILE	k11111	1 1 1 1	1111111111					
1.1	61.11.11.1	ELLE	uir	1111111111		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		11 1111111111	
	11111					111111111	1111111		
1			1111			1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	11111111		
	D 2023								
100	Řes								

# 12. APPENDIX II: RESULT FOR SAMPLE PROBLEM

SUPERPOSET ION CALCULATION AFTER SPANT	ERS SECOND ME	THOD			
A40000 . MITIAL INTEGRA - 555555555					
HINNER DE HOOGRATOR MULLIDE TYPE S- 1					
		- 0.140005 00			
			LANCK CHERY	r L 9411= 0.90000E 01	
Parant Ser Serie Chosses (101 0-	A6 SURBER* 0.9	5000E 01			
<b>CARRA-EANNA - 0</b>	- 24600E-01				
ARAN DE VERSONT OF AD SARDER- 0.23800E O	3				
THIPOROURS OF HIDENATOR - 0.30000E 03					1
MANALES C.LOOGE D1 PITCH= 0.26587E	01				25
CHICANTATON OF AS SOLDER NUCLES - 0.4	6974E-01				-
THE THE THE				·	
CLOSSSECTION NUM	ER <b>DENS</b> ITY 6633E-01	SCATTERING NO	90E		
THE PERSON OF THE TELMS TO MES	DRANCE INTEGR	AL			
TERN-	0-12003E 00	DEVIATION- 0	-316855-02		
	0-11266E 01 0.57935E-01	DEVIATION- 0 DEVIATION- 0	-436212-02		
THE ALL AND MANAGE STARLE TERN-	0-\$17518-01	DEVIATION- D	-339458-02		
	0-27600E-01	DEVIATION- 0	-711808-02		
THE REAL PROPERTY -	0, 761346-01	BEVIATION- 8	-196218-03		

COPMON/CON3/U, V, W, SIN2, IX, TCES(1000), TSIN(1000), AH(5), ASOPLI(5), J

DIMENSION PH(1000), SIGT(1000), SIGSR(1000), SAST(1000), TLOG(1000),

10EQ (1000,4), EQ (1000,4), RINT(5), PRES (5), DPRS(4), TDEL(4), ISMAX(2,4) 2, SHMI(5), SHMA(5), CCHCH(5), RKSIP(5), ALH(5), OMALH(5), RAND(5)

101 FORMAT(1H0, 54HSUPERPOSITION CALCULATION AFTER SPANIERS SECOND METH

#### 43. APPENDIX III: COMPUTER CODE PRINT-OUT

CEPHEN/CON2/ETA, ER, AL , A2, A3, A4, SPA, CONCA

CCMMON/CDM4/PI;DIA;SHM,RK;FINVS(46)

CC##CN/CCH5/801

LOGICAL LABEL C SPECIFICATION OF 1/0 UNITS

3.TANIS(8)

NIN=5

100)

÷ 1)

NOL 1=6

200 PORMAT(6110)

201 FORMA1(8E10.5)

199 FCFHAT(3E10.5.110)

WRITE (NOUT. 101)

WRITE(NOUT, 113) TIDMAX 113 FORMAT (1HO, 13HMAXIMUN TINE= FE, 2, 2X, THE INUTES) WRITE (NOUT, 114) 114 FOFMAT(1H0,14H#ODERATOR CATA) WRITE (NOUT, 115) 115 FOFMAT(IN ,13HATONIC WEIGHT,4X,12HCROSSSECTION,4X,14HNUMBER DENSIT 1Y:4X:15HSCATTERING FODE) DC 64 I=1,1800 64 WRITE(NOUT, 116)AN(I), SMMI(I), CONCH(I), IAN IS(I) 116 FOFMAT(1H , E12, 5, 5X, E12, 5, 4X, E12, 5, 11X, 12) FK=FK2/2. PI=3.14159265 TCP1=2.\*PI DC 250 I1=1,1000 R=FLOAT(11)/1000.-0.0005 ARGU=TOPI4R-PI 7COS(11)=COS(ARGU) TSIN [I]=SIN(ARGU) 250 TLCG(11)=ALOG(R) E=GN4GG ETA=G+SORT(AA/0.0013776/7/ER) \$0=2. C3E 6\* ([AA+1. CC857]/AA] ##2#GN/G/ER H1=50/G+SORT(PI)+ETA A1=H1+GG A2=H1+GN A3=2. + SORT( SO+SPA+GN+PI/G)+ETA DELE= (EU-EL)/1000. A4=2.+ETA/G CO 50 1=1.1000 HE=I E=EL+DELE+{HC-0.5} H7+A4+ (E-ER) CALL ERFCPL (H7, ETA, U, V) SA=A1+U+SORT(ER/E) SSR=A2+U+A3+V SE#SSR+SPA \$1=\$A+\$\$ SAST[1]=SA/ST SIGER(I)=SSR+CONCA 50 STET(I)+ST+CONCA SP AF#SPA#CONCA CIA=2.==ROI F150=R01+72 AREA1 PITRISO AREA2-AK2##2-AREA1 CFAL1=4\_ #AA/{AA+1\_3##2 RKS11+6./(3.+AA+2.) SOLR=RKSI I+SPAMPAREAL SHM=0. CC 66 1=1,1MOD ASCPL1(1)=AM(1)++2+1\_ SPPA(I)=CONCH(I)=SHHI(J) SHA-SHAASAWA (T) ALAITI-SA-OMACHII

RKST#(I)=1.

. . 204

66 READ(SIN, 200)IPNO IF ( IPKO,LT. 0) STOP NHAX=500 FN=NMAX READ (NIN. 200) IX. IMOD REACTAIN, 201 BER, EU, EL, SPA, GN, GG, AA, 7, RC1, RK2, CCNCA, TIDMAX 00 63 I=1, IMOD C3 READ(NIN, 199)AP(I), SMMI(I), CCNCM(I), IAN IS(I) WRITE (NOUT. 103) IPNO 103 FOFMAT(1H1, 10HPROBLEM NO, 13) WRITE (NOUT, 104) IX 104 FCFMAT(1H0,23HRANDCH INITIAL INTEGER=,110) WRITE (NOUT, 105) IMOD 105 FCFMAT(1H0, 34HNUMBER OF MODEFATOR NUCLIDE TYPES=, 12) WRITE (NOUT, 106)ER, EU, EL 106 FORMAT(INO.17HRESDNANCE ENERGY=,E12;5,3X,19HUPPER ENERGY LIMIT=, 1811.5, 3x, 19HLOWER ENERGY LIMIT=, E12.5) WRITE (HOUT. 107) SPA 107 PORFAT (110, 46HPOTENTIAL SCATTERING CROESSECTION OF ABSORBER, E12, 5 TRITE (NOUT, 108)GA, GG 100 FOFAT ( ND, BHGANNA-N=, E12, 5, 3X, 12+GANNA-GANNA=, E12, 6 WPITE (HOUT, 109)AA 309 FCFFAT(1HO, 26HATONIC WEIGHT OF ABSCRBER=, E12, \$) WRITE (NOUT 110)T 110 FCFRATLING, SENTEMPERATURE CP PODEFATCH=, E12.51 1.0 WR ITE (NOUT - 141) ROL JEK2 22 11 FCF @ 10 (10) 700 # 105+, @ 2.8, 38, 60P STEN= ; E12; 6 }~ WRITEINOUTZELEISONEA 🐅 🗄 😂 😤 . ř. BE POFRATELING DURCHTRATION OF ABSCHEET MELET-, E12.8)

1

÷.,

1.

10 10 10

5

IF (A# [ ] . GT. 1. 5) RKSIN [] ]=1. +ALN (] )/CHALP (] ) +ALOG(ALN(]) } 66 SOUR + SOUR + RKSIP(I)+ SMMA (I)+AREA2 CALL PINCA IF ( INCD.EQ. 1 )GOTOE7 RAND[1]=SHMA[1]/SHM DE 68 1=2. IMOD 68 RAND(1)=RAND(1-1)+SMMA(1)/SHM AT COFFEDELE/CONCA DC 51 1=1.1000 Hisi E=EL+DELE+(H1-0.5) STF=SIGT(I) OP1+STERROL PZEFO=PO(OPT) PST/R=PS(OPT) ASRE-ABSI STE-SPAN) DEG(1,1)=ASRF\*(PZERO-SAST(1)\*(PZERO-PSTAR))/E H2=SPAN+ (1-PZERD)/STF/E DEG(1,2)=ASRF+H2 +3=ABS(SIGSR(1)) DEG[1.3]=H3+H2 51 DEG(1.4)=H34PZERO/E RINT(E)=SELIN(EL,EU,128,10(C.)/DELE PRES(5)=COEF#RINT(5) D0 12 L=1,4 RINT(L)=0. DG 52 1=1,1000 E2 RINT(L)=RINT(L)+DEC(I,L) CO 23 L=1,4 J=1 P4=0. + 5=0.0005 SUH= Q\_ CO 54 I=1,1000 H2=DEQ[I.L) H2=H4 £L'H=SUN+H2 H4#EUM/RINT(L) 55 IF (H4.LT.H5)GOT054 H1=1-1 EQ (J,L)=EL+DELE#[ (H5-H3)/(H4-H3)+H1 ) J=J+1 FE=FLCAT(J)/1000--0-0000 601056 54 CONTINUE E3 CENTINUE TC=0. J=1 DO 322 M=1.2 THAD-TIDHAX/16. الوراجة الإرادة CO-350 L=1.4 9 7 5 1 AP 41 1 4 IF (M.EQ. 2) THAX=TOEL (L) If#Ø CALL TIME(ISTART) ALLER THE CARD AND A 01 RE1=0\_ A share the second of the second s 5.4 - N#O

and the second second second

1EVEN=1 62 N=N+1 IF{N\_EG\_NNAX+1}GOTC86 C INITIAL ENERGY LAEEL=\_FALSE. IEVEN=-IEVEN IF ( JEVEN ) 60.60.61 60 CALL BANDLEIX.R) 500C=R GC 1C C2 61 R=1\_-RODD 62 11=1000. \*R+1. E=EQ(11,L) I=(E-EL)/DELE+1. GCT0(204,202,202,203),L C STARTER OF TYPE 1 C INITIAL DIRECTION RELATIVE TO SURFACE NORMAL 2C6 WG=SIGN(1.,SIGT(I)-SPAM) LAEEL=, TRUE, 207 CALL FANDL(IX,R) V1=SORT(R) H1=SORT(1.-R) CALL RANDL(IX,R) I1=1000.+R+1. 1=+1=TSIN(11) 51N2=1--W##2 C REJECTION CALCULATION H2=OEXP(DIA=U1/SIN2+SIGT(I)) CALL RANDL(IX.R) IF (H2.LE.R) GOT0207 V1=H1+TCDS(I1) . C INITIAL SURFACE POSITION AND CORRECTION OF DIRECTION CALL RANDL(IX.R) I1=1000.+R+1. COSV=TCD5(11) SINV=TSIN(I1) X=E01+COSV Y=FC1\*SINV U= C0\$V+U1-SINV+V1 V=\$1NV#U1+COSV#V1 K=1 66165 C STARTER OF TYPE 2 OR 2 C INITIAL POSITION IN ZONE 1 202 CALL RANDL(1X.R) RCSC=R4R1 SO RC=SORT (ROSQ) 1000 CALL FANDL (IX,R) 11=1000e\*R+1e 一日,甘露都 安阳地 白 Y=FC#75IN(11) CALL 150 - 1、11日にいいに参与も復世者 C INITIAL PATH LENGTH IN ZONE 1 アーレー えいりんきわせ CALL RANCL(IX.R) 😧 ESTRECTESSES SECTION (CLARK CLARK) 11+1080.+R+1. RL=+TLOG(11)/SIGT(1) CALL 130 I PHOS HE ATANE ATAN

- 30

C REJECTION CALCULATION X=>+U+RL Y=Y+V+RL R0 50=X\*\*2+Y\*\*C IF (F0\$0.GT.R1\$0) G0T0202 K=1 IF (L.EQ. 3)GOTO204 WG=SIGN(1.,SIGT(I)-SPAM) 601015 204 WE=SIGN(1.,SIGSR(I)) 601015 C STARTER OF TYPE 4 C INITIAL DIRECTION RELATIVE TO SURFACE NORMAL 203 CALL HANDL(IX,R) UI=-SORT(R) H1=SORT(1.-R) CALL RANDL(IX,R) \_ 11=100C\_ #R+1. ¥=1:1+TSIN(11) SIN2=1.-V++2 C REJECTION CALCULATION H2=-CIA+U1/SIN2+SIGT(I) CALL FANDL(IX,R) IF (CEXP(H2).LE.R) GOTO203 V1=H1#TCDS(I1) C INITIAL SURFACE POSITION AND CORRECTION OF CIRECTION CALL RANDL(IX,R) 11=1000.\*R+1. COSV=TCOS(11) SINV=TSIN(I1) x=#01\*COSV Y=FC1#SINV U=C03V+U1-SINV+V1 V=SINV+U1+C05V+V1 C COVEYOU SAMPLING OF INITIAL RESONANCE SCATTERING IN ZONE 1 CALL RANDL(IX,R) 11=10C0.\*R+1. H1≠-TLOG(11) 11=H1/H2 H2=11 RL={H1-H3+H2}/SIGT(1) C POSITION OF INITIAL SCATTERING X=>+U#RL Y=Y+V+RL R05G=X++2+Y++2 WG=SIGN{1.,SIGSR{1}} K=1 C NOW BEGINS COMMON HISTORY BLOCK C SANFLING OF ENERGY AFTER SCATTERING IN ZONE 1 AT CALL BANDL(IX,R) E-E+(1-R+OXAL1) IF (E.LT.EL)GOTO82 I={E-EL}/DELE+1. 1 - Densel - Las 医乳液体的 化氯乙基乙基苯乙 C ISOTROPIC DIRECTION ZONE 1 · 「公園市、東京大学業業、市場委員會中央20年 CALL 150 C PATH LENGTH IN ZONE 1

6 CALL FANDLIIX.R) I1=1000.\*R+1. RL=-TLOG(I1)/SIGT(I) C DISTANCE TO ZONE INTERFACE DELTA=U+X+V+Y IF (K.EQ. 2)GOTO13 SL=(SQRT(DELTA++2+SIN2+(R1SQ-R0SQ))-DELTA)/SIN2 GCTC14 13 K=1 SL=-2. +DELTA/SIN2 14 IF(SL.GE.RL)GOTO4 X=>+U=SL 7=1+V+SL C MODIFIED TRACK LENGTH SCORING IN CASE OF PASSAGE RES=RES+WG#SAST(I)#SIGT(I)#SL 60105 C COLLISION IN ZONE 1 4 CALL FANDL(IX,R) IF(R-SAST(1))18,17,17 C ABSORPTION 18 IF(LABEL)GDT0207 C MODIFIED TRACK LENGTH SCOFING IN CASE OF ABSDRPTION H1=SL=SIGT(I) +2=0EXP(H1) RES=RES+WG+SAST(1)+(1,-(1,-H2)+(H1+1,))/H2 601062 C SCATTEFING IN ZONE 1 17 IF (LABEL) GOTO19 C MODIFIED TRACK LENGTH SCOFING IN CASE OF SCATTERING RES=RES+WG#SAST(1)#SIGT(1)#RL 19 X=>+U+RL Y=Y+V+RL R020=3\*\*2+Y\*\*2 CCTC18 C PATH LENGTH IN ZONE 2 5 CALL RANDL(IX,R) 11=1000.\*R+1\_ RL=-TLOG[11]/SHM IF (K.EQ. 1)GOTO7 DEL TA=U=X+V+Y IF (DELTA.GT.O.)GOTO7 8 D=CELTA++2-SIN2+(RCSQ-R1SQ) 1F (D.LT.0.)G0707 C DIRECT ICN TOWARDS ZONE 1 T= (-DELTA-SORT (D))/SIN2 1.111.111.111 IF (T.GT.RL)GCT09 ·李承令书》高校在台中,原目 X=3+U+T 法法法条件 Y= 1+V#T 一些的复数形式 60 T 0 6 C DIRECTION TOWARDS OUTER BOUNDARY - いいく () ほどいすうそうきびきゅうせ 7 K=2 K=# F1=81GN (Rk↓U) Tx={H\$→X}/U - 《网络复口开品牌 11、11、11日的建长的16日,12年3月1日台的大厅设计范标量量下使改进出进冲。 +8=81GN(RK,V) 14={H8-Y}/V 1.5010011.001.000.411.41 11.7134281#14 T=TY

IF [TX.LT. TY] T=TX IF (T. GT. RL) GOTO9 C REFLECTION 3=3+U+T Y=Y+V#T F050=X++2+Y++2 AL=AL-T 1F (TX-TY)10,11,11 10 L=-U GCTC12 11 V=-V 12 DELTA=U#X+V#Y IF [CELTA]8,8,7 C ENERGY SAMPLING FOR ZONE 2 COLLISION 9 CALL FANDL(IX,P) IF ( INCO.EC. 1 )GOTO65 DC 70 J=1,1MOD 70 IFIR.LT.RAND[J])GDT071 71 H1=0. IF{J.GT.1}H1=RAND{J-1} R={R-H1}/{RAND(J)-H1} 69 E=E+[1\_-R+0HALH(J)) IF ( E.LT.EL )GOTO82 1= [E-EL]/DELE+1. C POSITION FOR ZONE 2 COLLISION LABEL=.FALSE. 3=2+U#RL Y=Y+Y#RL f0\$Q=X++2+Y++2 C ISOTROPIC DIRECTION ZONE 2 IF ( IAN IS ( J)'EQ.1 ) GOT072 CALL 150 60105 72 CALL ANIS 60105 60 15=15+1 PR[IS]=RES CALL TIME(ISLUT) TID=FLOAT(ISLUT-ISTART)/36CO. IF (TID.LT.TMAX.AND. IS.LT. 1000) GOTO81 TC=TD+TID +1=0. F2=0. DD 48 1=1,15 H2=F#{Z} H1=+14H3 E5 F2=H2+H3+=2 RE=IS +1=+1/85 22. € 38 817 °C 86 8 **5** 6 6 °C 2=22/RS HE=CCEFFRINT(L)/AN F4#F1#H3 1997, 838 P. 1977 P. H6=80A1({H2-H1+#2}/(RS-1.))#H3 - (F. [ ) + [ + ] ) + \* \* IIMAX(HaL}=I# "你们,你们算法你有意义要说。 ## (#.EQ. 1)GOTUE7 - 龙水李字小李相多古故王. #3=15MAX(1,L) -8 6 . . .

4825

F2=15MAX(2,L) F3=F14H2 PRES(L)={H1+PRES(L)+F2+H4}/F3 DPFS(L)=SQRT((H1+DPRS(L))++2+(H2+H5)++2)/H3 GCT0350 87 FFES(L)=H4 DPRS(L)=H5 350 CENTINUE 1F (#.EQ.2)G0T0352 ⊢1≠0. DC 353 L=1.4 353 H1=+1+DPR5(L) DO 354 L=1.4 TDEL (L)=TIDMAX\*(DPRS(L)/H1-C.C625) 354 IF (TDEL(L).LT. 0.2) TDEL(L)=0.2 352 CONTINUE P=FRES(5)-PRES(1)-PRES(2)+FRES(3)+PRES(4) H1=C. CC 351 L=1,4 381 H1=H1+DPR5(L)\*\*2 CP~SORT(H1) IG-(P/DP)##2/TD/60.+3.5 WRITE (NOUT .121) 121 FCFMAT(1H0,S2HCONTRIBUTION OF THE FIVE TERMS TO RESONANCE INTEGRAL 1) WFITE (NOUT ,122)PRES (5) 122 FCF#AT(1H , 37HDETERMINISTIC TERM= E12.5) WFITE (NOUT, 123) PRES(1), DPRS(1) 123 FCFMAT(1H , 37HNEGATIVE OUTBARD SURFACE SCURCE TERM=, E12, 5, 3X; 11CHDEVIATION=,E12.5) WRITE (NOUT, 124) PRES (2), DPRS (2) 124 FCFMAT(IH , 37HNEGATIVE VOLUME SOURCE TERM# ,E12.5,3X, 110+DEVIATION=,E12.5) WRITE(NOUT, 117)PRES(3), DPRS(3) 117 FCFMAT(1H ,37HPOSITIVE VOLUME SOURCE TERP= 1612.5,3X, 110+CEVIATION=,E12,5) WRITE (NOUT, 118) PRES (4), DPRE(4) 118 FORMATISH , 37HPOSITIVE INWARD SURPACE SCURCE TERM= ,E12, 5, 3x, 110HCEVIATION=,E12.5) 1 1 1 1 1 1 E B WRITE (NOUT, 119)P.DP 119 FERMAT(1H0,37HRESUNANCE INTEGRAL= .E12.5.3X. 110+DEVIATION=, E12.51 . 1 2 3 +1=AREA1 +CCNCA/SOUR 111130 Fabite. ્રાયેલ્સ દ CP=+140P. とうまれた WRITE(NOUT,120)P,DP 1.6了来我处了吗 资 120 FEFMAJ-11HD, THRESCHANCE CAPTURE PROBABILITY= . 110FEEVIA: INN#F122EE) ,E12,5,3%, 11111221114864 14170(NOUT4126)10 125 FCF#AT(4H0,20HSTAT1STICAL GUALITY=, IE) 字经女子 法审报者 SCTREE S 无单数网 EAC 7H-1ARA3 EAE: 183 11日本のの方式であるためなかます。 いたのかられた。 ●H##111#3+##\$H No. \$ 629 ------

143

CALLSCON 16

2410

8034

ARUT 32

6.532100+9

2 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 5 9 3

FLERCUTINE 150 SLEFCUTINE PINCA CCMMCN/CCM3/U, V, W, SIN2, IX, TCCS(1000), TSIN(1000) .AM(5) .ASGPL1(5).J CCPMCN/COM4/PI.DIA.SHP.RK.PINNS(46) CALL FANDL( IX.R) COMMON/COM5/601 CIMENSION X1(8).V1(E).WG1(E).L1(64).V1(64).ST1(10).PESC(10). N=1.48-1. 1RESULT(10).OPTCH(10),CPT1(1C).OPT2(10).CAM(10).RESNOW(10). SIN2=1.-W##2 +1=SORT(SIN2) 25T#CH(10).PSTAR1(46).YG(8).WE1(8) CALL FANDL(IX,R) CATA YG.WG1/0.001991...020642...062266...26855...394469...617311. 11=1(00.+R+1. 1. # 256 \$ 310 96475610 00729510 01784310 0454391007920010 10604710 112506. L=+1+1COS(11) 2.091319,.044551/ y=F1+TSIN(I1) CF1F0=R01\*SHM **EFTURN** CEF1SQ=CPTR0##2 OP TEX = RK\*SHN ENC DO 201 1=1.8  $y_1(t)=CPTSO \neq (t_a-y_G(t))$ 301 X1(I)=SORT(OPR1SQ-Y1(I)++2) C#=PI/128. CCMMCh/CON3/U, V, W, S1N2, IX, TCCS(1000), TSIN(1000), AN(5), ASGPL1(5), J SUFFICITINE ANIS CC 302 J=1.32 ARGU=EA\*(FLOAT(J)-C.E) CALL FANDL( 1X.R) IF (AF (J)-LT.1.E)GOTC1 H1=CCS (ARGU) F2=EIN (ARGU) 68722.\*R-1. U1(J)=H1 H1=AN(J)\*RMY A= (1. +H1)/SQRT (ASQPL1(J)+2. +H1) V1(J)=H2 J2=65-J E=SORT (1.-A++2) U1 (J2)=H1 60102 302 V1[J2]=-H2 1 A=SORT (R ) EO 302 K#1.10 8= 508T(1--R) F1#1.2#FLOAT(K) 2 CALL RANDL( IX, R) STHCH (K)=H1 11=1000.\*R+1. ST1(K)=H1/DIA (=1005(11) PESC(K)=PO(H1/2.) 0=15IN(11) RESNOP (K)=0. ECh=E+C+W 303 RESULT(K)=0. 80=8#0 CC 350 I=1.8 SUIN=SORT(SIN2) UEF= (BCW+U-BD+V]/SUIN+A+U FG=x1(I) V= (ECW+V+BD+U)/SUIN+A+V YC=Y1(I) 16=161 (1) 北京北西西 a=/+w-E+C+SUIN F1=2.+X0/SHM CO 2C4 K=1.10 51N2=1--#\*\*2 #2=+1#ST1(K) RETURN OF1C+(K)=H2 ENC 304 REENCH(K)=RESNCH(K)+BIC3(H2)+WG CC 250 J=1.64 U=61(J) FUNCTION PS(T) V=11(J) CEPMCN/CON4/PISCIA, SPP,RK,PINVS(46) X=X0#U-Y0#V 1F (T.GE. 6. ) GOTOL Y=>C+V+Y0+U 1# {T.FE. 1. )GOTC2 DD 105 K+1.10 A=20. CP11(K)=0. 8=1. 305 CPT2(K)=OPTCH(K) 60103 3CE CFT#CD=0. 2 A=t. 307 THE/OFTRK-X1/U B\*16. 5.2 .t-145.7 . 1 .. F1=SIGN(OPTRK.V) 3 61=##7#3 - くさーガナやたうからる TY=(H1-Y)/V 1+14 - 4-1 A7+A3+A4 Arres Roads IF (TY\_LT\_TX) GOT0311 F2=PINVS(1) 5.1-4 385 03 a series and a series of CF1#0D=OPTMOD+TX +1=FINVS([+1] the second state of the second states and the second states and the second states and the second states and the X=-CPTRK F4+F3-H2 SHAR. BELERX A 2 15 12 1 1=1+V+TX HENI S 料外。3 乙烯醇含 化酚氨基 化合成合金 3.45 GC78312 +6++1-+5 311 CFT#CC=OPTHOC+TY h7=H14+64H4 X=X+U+TY PE=1./HT · 主义司集》《史主》本文在田林在了一方言》《古言》大品种林水深中间做来"这些里你出家当场" ())这些 Y=++1 RETURN 00.101 495 33 212 C=CF#150-(U+Y-V#X)##2 1 PE=E./PINVS(46)/T 1 31 284 FERN af #1 31 8 48 8 8 8 IF (C) 207, 213, 313 RETURN - <del>D</del>a 14 212 TH-UFY-VEY-SORT(D) ENC Contraction of the second

CETHOD=OPTHOD+T CC 3C8 K=1,10 CPIAC=OPT2[K] CPIEC=OPT1(K) CFTAD=OPTAC+OPTMOD CPTEC=OPTBC+OPTMOD H1=BIC3(OPTEC)-BIC3(OPTAC)-EIC3(OPTED)+BIC3(OPTAD) 308 RESULT (K)=RESULT (K)+H1\*4G >=>+U+T ¥= ¥+¥#T CELTA=U#X+V#Y SL==2.\*DELTA x=x+U+SL \*=++V\*SL SL=SL/SHM IF (OPT1(1)+SL\*ST1(1)+CPTMCD.GT.7.)GCT0350 CO 309 K=1.10 F1=SL +ST1(K)+CFTMOC CPT1(K)=0PT1(K)+H1 309 CP12(K)=0PT2(K)+H1 60 10 20 6 250 CONTINUE H2=P1/8. CC 351 K=1.10 351 RESULT(K)=RESULT(K)+PESC(K)/64./(H2-RESNCH(K)) PSTAR1(1)=1. PS74R1(13)=RESULT(1) CC 346 K=2,10 L=2+K+16 346 FSTAR1 (L)=RESULT(K) CO 347 K=1,10 X=ST#CH{K} P=PESC(K) PS1=RESULT(K) E1=X#P#PST 347 EAF(K)=H1/(P-PST+H1) GAPHA=GAM(1) EC 348 L=2,12 h1=L x=(+1-1.)/1C. P=PG(x/2.) 348 FSTAR1(L)=P+GAMMA/(1.-(1.-GAMMA)+(1.-X+F)) H2#GAM(1) +3=6A#(2)-H2 EC 345 L=14,21 +1=L x=(+1-1.)/10. GAMMA=H2+H3/1+2\*(X-1+2) P=F((X/2.) 349 PS1AR1(L)=P+GAMMA/(1.-(1.-GAPMA)+(1.-X+F)) EC 260 K=3,10 h1=K ×1=1.2+H1-1.2 +3=CAN(K-1) HANCAP (K)-H3 CC 36C M=1,2 - PERSONAL 1114-97 H-S=M-「おけどなけらせん」 X=X1+0.4#H2 1-1-5334 6##MA=H3+H4/3\_+H2 310100 P=P0(x/2,) 1.=2\*##+#+13 77731225 360 PETAR1(L)=P#GAWMA/(1.-{1.-GAWMA}#(1.-X#P)) 24-24 CC 261 L-1,40 ちゅんしてんたいしょうかいしょうから 古王道 361 ######!L]#1#/PSTARI(L) 1Ff65007,313,313, **FURN** 10) 7902-740-440-7 · and the and the second states of the

- 37 -FUNCTION SELIN(A,8,+,FN) CC##CK/CON1/XX.YY DIMENSION FUNC(129) F=(E-A)/FLOAT(N) F1=N+1 DC 11 I=1,NP1 XX=A+FLOAT(I-1)+H CALL FOT 11 FUNC(I)=YY DEL=C. CC 1 1=1.N I CEL=DEL+ARS(FUNC(I+1)-FUNC(I)) RI=C. CC 2 1=1.N XL=A+FLOAT[I-1]+H >J=FH+ABS(FUNC(I+1)-FUNC(I))/DEL+1. FJ2=H/FLOAT(#J) FJ=HJ2/2, FIJ=FUNC(I)+FUNC(I+1) XX=XL-HJ +1=0. DC 3 J=1,#J XX=XX+HJ2 CALL FCT 3 H1=H1+YY RIJ=RIJ+4\_\*H1 IF (#J.EQ. 1)GOTO2 XXXXL MJ1=>J-1 +2=0. DC 4 J=1,MJ1 XX=XX+HJ2 CALL FCT 4 18=12+44 FIJ=RIJ+2.\*H2 2 FI=RI+RIJ#HJ/3. SEL IN=RT RETURN ENC

1. S. S. S. C. S. S.

SLEROLTINE FCT CEPPEN/CEN1/XX.YY CCMMCN/COM2/ETA, ER, A1, A2, A3, A4, SPA, CCNCA CCPPCN/CONS/ROL F7=A4# [XX-ER] CALL ERFCPL(H7,ETA,U,V) SA=A1+U+SORT(ER/XX) 55=#2#U+A3#V+SPA 这个正式完成人 经月上 网络黄癜蛇头属 小學 ST=SA4SS CF1=ST+CCNCA+RC1 PSTAR=PS(OP7) YY+SAVCONCA+(PSTAR+\$PA/ST+(1.-PSTAR))/># #853504 (1.5.) 6-6.4 ENC 

SUPERITINE ERFCPL (X,Y,U,V) C=C. C=C. N=1 1F (Y.CE.O.)GOTO1 c=tx+v3+[X-V] C=-2.+X+Y X=+X ¥ = -- ¥ 1 IF (X.CE.U.) GOTC2 X=-X N=-1 2 1F (X+Y. GE. 3. S. CR. Y+C. 2\*X. GE. 1.7) GOTC3 A= (x+y)\*(X-Y) E=2.\*X\*Y T=C.4+A FN=-0+04\*(A\*#2+8\*#2) P1=-14.3+T\*3e3 P3=\$10\_21+T\*P1+RM#3\_3 PE==E190 3045+T#P3+P##P1 P1=3267,20621+T#P2+5H#P3 P3=4455. 537594T#P1+RM#P2 P2=14448.00588+T\*P3+R#\*P1 PL= (-E488, 78070+T+FE+AM+P3)/6. T1=12C56.5125+A\*P1+FN\*P2 1\$=E\*P1 P3=11.+T P2=29\_1+T+P2+RM P1=#14\_8+T+P2+RM+P3 P3=2207, 205+T+P1+RM+P2 P2=7121.3442+T\*P3+R##P1 P1=17481.0636+1+P2+FM+P3 P3=31537. 26576+T\*P1+R#\*P2 P2=35914, 35158+T+P3+RH+P1 P1={31832.52763+T+P2+RN+P3}/E. FN1=12096-5125+A\*P1+RM\*P2 5N5 = E + P1 P3=1a1283751671/(RN1++2+5N2++2) P2=F34 (AN1+T1+AH2+T2) P1=P3+(AN1+T2-RN2+T1) 1+FXP(-A) L=1+CCS[8]-X+P1-Y+P2 V=- T+S IN (8)+X+P2-Y+F1 GC TC4 3 P1=y++2 U=0. V=C. 1=1. 6 A=x+T+0.3142403763 E+C\_1814756822/(A++2+P1) Nat 48 1=14A+B A=>+0.\$477483912+T #=[\_(e291727763/(A++2+P1) 1=148 Vev4548 A=##1.6976826382#T -----

8=C=01(42733203/(A++2+P)) L=L+B V=\+A+B A=x+2.2755070805#T E=C+(-01243124432/(A++2+P1) U=048 V= V+A+A A=x+3\_0206370251\*T E=0\_(0C02725C85347/(A\*+2+P1) 1=1+8 1=1+4+8 A=#+3.8897248579#1 E=0.0(000000462432841/(A++2+F1) U=L+B V=\+A+B 1F (TeLTeDe) GOTO6 1=-1. 60105 6 U=U=Y 4 V=V#FLOAT(N) IF (CaEQaQaa ANDaDaEQaQa) RETURN C=EXP(-C) U=2\_+(+COS(D)-U V=5\_\*C\*SIN(D)-V RETURN END FUNCTION BIC2(X) JF [X.GE.1.]GOT01 247.85379789E-1 RETLRN 1 IF (X.GE.2.)GOT02 RETURN

BIC2=X#{X#{X#{X#{X#{X#{X#4.164516716-2-1.733737036-1}} 1+3,42522057E-1)-5,06602394E-1)+7,48517345E-1)-9,98434740E-1) EIC3=X+(X+(X+(X+ 1.18535064E-2-1.07572E88E-1)+4.13393240E-1)+ 1-6,23(31468E-1)+7,44150729E-1 2 1F (x, GE. 4.) GOTO3 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 E C BIC3=X+(X+(X+(X+(X+(-4,2\$476343E-4)+8,23536987E-3)-6,59959216E+2) 1+1.00376616E-1)-6.44209963E-1)+6.03702725E-1 999 1443 4 RETURN SHARISHARSH 3 IF (X. GE. C. )GUTC4 Call & Calling B1C 3=x+ (x+ (x+ (x+ (x+ (-1, 50015616E-B)+5, 2(C57758E-4)-7, 202474275+3) 1+E.17164356E-2j-1.67368676E-1j+2,78751766E-10AFj-0-a354745,0+00 a RETURN -1 SUT 33 4 JF (x.GE. 10. 1GOTOS 0.43 81C3==5\_656=E+(X=10+) RETURN 5 BICINGER ALTONA IN HARDING AND CARACTOR IN A MANA MARGADISTICS IN A RETURN. and 7, 2059.

## 14. APPENDIX IV: ESCAPE PROBABILITY P. FOR INFINITE CYLINDERS

```
FUNCTION DEXP(X)
```

```
1 1F (X. 6E. 2.31G0T02
```

DE 10=x+{ x+{ x+3, 3581449E-2-2, CE85457E-1 }+7,9497384E-1 }+6,9509154E-2 RE1URN

2 1F (X. GE. 4. 24)GCTC3

DEXP=X4(X+6,7157845E-3-8,6419575E-2)+3,8766640E-1)+3,8377218E-1 RETURN

3 1F (X.GE.8.)GOTC4

CExP=x+(x+(x+4, 5486238E-4-5,8122242E-3)+7,1109749E-2)+8,2603369E-1 RETURN

4 CE>P=1.

```
RETURN
```

ENC

```
FUNCTION PO(T)
  CIVENSION PINVO(46)
 DATA FINVO/1.1.0052,1.1299,1.1950,1.2010,1.3278,1.3957,1.4646,
 11.2346,1.6058,1.6780,1.7513,1.8256,1.9011,1.9775,2.0548,2.1334,
 22.2122,2.2930,2.3735,2.4561,2.7920,3.1389,3.4952,3.6591,4.2292,
 34. 6(45, 4. 9841, 5. 3668, 5. 7524, 6. 1402, 6. 5255, 6. 9204, 7. 3126, 7. 7059,
 48. (558.8. 4947.8. 8856.5. 2851.5. 6815.10. (776.10. 4745.10. 8719.
 $11.2689,11.6673,12.CC42/
  1F(T.GE.6.)GOTO1
  IF (T.GE. 1. ) GOTO2
  A=EC.
  E=1.
  GOTC3
2 A=E.
  8=16.
3 11=##748
  Tet 1
  F2=PINVO(I)
  #3=FINV0(I+1)
  +4=13-12
 +E=T-
  +6=H1-H5
  +7=+2++6+H4
  P0=1./H7
  RETURN
1 P0=0.5/T*(1.-0.18757T+*2)
  RETURN
  ENG
                                                                 1 1 1 1 1 1 X
                                                               1. 1.112
                                                                    200
```

The development in sec. 3 indicated the need for efficient subroutines calculating the escape probability  $P_0$  as well as the collision probability  $P^*$ . Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2)</sup> suggest the methods to be applied here for both quantities.  $P_0$  is treated in this appendix, while  $P^*$  is treated in Appendix V.

The escape probability  $P_0$  for a medium is the probability that an isotropic starter picked from a uniform distribution in the medium will escape from it uncollided.  $P_0$  for an infinite cylinder is a well-defined function of the optical radius  $\zeta = a E$ . In fact it is given in terms of the modified Bessel functions by the following expression <sup>15, 21</sup>

$$P_{0}(\zeta) = \frac{2\zeta}{3} \left\{ 2 \left[ \zeta \left( I_{0}K_{0} + I_{1}K_{1} \right) - 1 \right] + I_{0}K_{1} - I_{1}K_{0} + \frac{I_{1}K_{1}}{\zeta} \right\} .$$
(47)

the arguments of  $I_0$ ,  $K_0$ ,  $I_1$ ,  $K_1$  being  $\zeta$ .

Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2</sup>) notice that  $1/P_O(\zeta)$  is an almost linear function of  $\zeta$  and give a table<sup>\*</sup> of this function for  $0 < \zeta < 6$ ; the arguments are  $\zeta = 0, 0.05, 0.1, \ldots, 0.95, 1.0, 1.2, \ldots, 5.8, 6.0$ . They claim that linear interpolation in this table yields  $P_0$  to within 0.1%. Beyond the table range they recommend the expression

 $P_{o}(\zeta) \approx \frac{1}{2\zeta}$ (48)

In MCSUP the above technique is utilized in constructing the subroutine "PO". However, in order to keep within the 0.1% accuracy for all  $\zeta$ , (48) was replaced by the following more accurate expression, obtained by retaining one more term in the asymptotic expansion for  $P_{-}(\zeta)^{15}$ 

$$P_{o}(\zeta) \approx \frac{1}{2\zeta} \left(1 - \frac{3}{16\zeta^{2}}\right)$$
(49)

Three errors in Spanler and Gelhard's table have been determined the values of  $1/P_0$  at  $\zeta = 1.4$ , 2.4, and 3.8, should read 3.1350, 4.0041, and 7.7059. - 42 -

15. APPENDIX V: FUEL-TO-MODERATOR COLLISION PROBABILITY P

We now turn to discuss the calculation of the fuel-to-moderator collision probability  $P^{+}$ , which occurs in (31) and (32).

Also here we shall follow Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2)</sup>, but only to a certain extent; we found it much more satisfactory to compute P<sup>\*</sup> by purely deterministic methods instead of using Monte Carlo.

 $P^{*}(E)$  is defined as the probability that a source neutron with energy E drawn from a uniform distribution in the fuel will make its first collision in the moderator.

As the moderator cross section is assumed energy independent, we first notice that  $P^{\pm}$  for a fixed configuration is a function only of the optical radius  $\zeta = a \Sigma$  of the fuel.

As for  $P_0$  (Appendix IV) we want to construct a table of  $P^*(\zeta)$ , or rather  $1/P^*(\zeta)$ , this quantity behaving more linearly. This table is of course not universal but depends on the actual configuration. This table has (like the  $1/P_0$ -table;) 46 entries with  $\zeta = 0, 0.05, 0.1, \ldots, 0.95, 1.0,$  $1.2, \ldots, 5.8, 6.0$ , and linear interpolation should be quite adequate to find  $P^*(\zeta)$  for arbitrary  $\zeta$ . Now Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2</sup>) point out that it is not necessary to calculate all the corresponding 46  $P^*$ -values. They take advantage of Nordheim's approximate formula<sup>22</sup>)

$$\mathbf{P}^{*}(\boldsymbol{\zeta}) \approx \frac{\mathbf{P}_{o}(\boldsymbol{\zeta}) \mathbf{G}_{m}}{1 - (1 - \mathbf{G}_{m})(1 - \mathbf{G}_{f}(\boldsymbol{\zeta}))}$$
(50)

where  $G_m$  and  $G_f(\zeta)$  is the sticking probability 2, 22 for the moderator and fuel, respectively, and define a quantity  $\gamma_m(\zeta)$  which exactly satisfies the following equation

$$P^{*}(\zeta) = \frac{P_{0}(\zeta) \gamma_{m}(\zeta)}{1 - (1 - \gamma_{m}(\zeta))(1 - Gf(\zeta))}$$
(51)

Due to (50),  $Y_m(\zeta)$  is a slowly varying function of  $\zeta$ . Now,  $G_f(\zeta)$  is given by <sup>2</sup>

**G<sub>1</sub>(ζ) = 2 ζ P<sub>0</sub>(ζ) ,** ((3.5) ) (3.5)

so, assuming  $P_{0}(\zeta)$  to be known,  $\gamma_{m}(\zeta)$  becomes a unique function of  $P^{*}(\zeta)$ . The idea is now to compute (in some way)  $P^{*}(\zeta)$  at rather few  $\zeta$ -values, e.g.  $\zeta = 0.6, 1.2, \ldots, 6.0$ . Via (51) one obtains 10 corresponding  $\gamma_{m}$ -values, and linear interpolation in this coarse  $\gamma_{m}$ -table renders next a full, 46-entry table for  $\gamma_{m}(\zeta)$ , which finally, again via (51), is converted to the desired 46-entry table for  $P^{*}(\zeta)^{*}$ .

Now it still remains to calculate  $P^*(\zeta)$  at  $\zeta = 0.6, 1.2, \ldots, 6.0$ , and in doing so, we now digress from the exposition of Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2</sup>, who recommend a Monte Carlo procedure for this job. We have found that an approach, inspired by Carlvik<sup>6,24</sup>, yield a both faster and more accurate calculation scheme.

Consider fig. 3 which shows a part of the infinite lattice system. P\* may be expressed by the double integral

$$P^{*} = \frac{2}{\pi} \int_{-\frac{\pi}{4}}^{\frac{\pi}{4}} da \int_{0}^{a} dy l(y) \frac{1}{\frac{1}{2\pi a^{2}}} p(y, a)$$
(53)

where p(y, a) is the probability that a starter drawn uniformly from the chord of length 1(y) after travelling in the direction a makes its first collision in the moderator. Referring to the optical scale on the a-ray depitched in fig. 3 below, one can show that p(y, a) is given by the expression



where Kin(x) is the Bickley function

Mikkelsen<sup>1)</sup> has noticed a pronounced maximum in the relative arror of (50) in the range 0  $\langle \zeta \rangle$  0.6 for small cells, perhaps making the above procedure questionship for such cells. We have, hewever, and revealed any significant vertors for the final calculation results. - 44 -

$$\operatorname{Ki}_{\mathbf{n}}(\mathbf{x}) = \int_{\mathbf{0}}^{\frac{\pi}{2}} \exp\left(-\frac{\mathbf{x}}{\cos\theta}\right) \cos^{\mathbf{n}-1} \theta d\theta \qquad (55)$$

Then (53) may be written

and the second second second second

$$\mathbf{p}^{*} = \frac{4}{\pi^{2}\Sigma a^{2}} \int_{-\frac{\pi}{4}}^{\frac{\pi}{4}} da \int_{0}^{a} dy \, \varphi(\mathbf{y}, a) \tag{56}$$

In the numerical calculation of the double integral (56), a discrete representation is chosen for both variables:

- 1) a-integration: 64 equidistant a-values in  $-\frac{\pi}{4} \langle a \langle \frac{\pi}{4} \rangle$
- 2) y-integration: 8 non-equidistant y-values in  $0 \langle y \rangle$  a.

The y-integration is of the Gaussian type. We choose a weight function mimicking the behaviour of the integrand near y = 0. For small y,  $\varphi(y, \alpha)$  tends to be proportional to l(y) and thereby to  $y^{1/2}$ . Hence, by introducing the new variable  $x = (y/a)^2$ , one could hope that the Gaussian representation

$$\int_{0}^{1} x f(x) dx = \sum_{i=1}^{n} w_{i} f(x_{i}) \quad \text{with } \sum_{i=1}^{n} w_{i} = \frac{1}{2}$$
(57)

would yield a good approximation to the integral in question. Ref. 18 gives tables of the  $x_i$  and  $w_i$  for different choices of n. With such a set of  $(x_i, w_i)$  one would then write

$$\int_{0}^{a} dy \ \varphi(y, a) \approx 2a \sum_{i=1}^{n} w_{i} \ \varphi(a \ \eta_{i}, a)$$
(58)

where  $v_1 = x_1^2$ . In fact, (58) has proved to be a surprisingly accurate approximation, and it seems rather difficult to justify mathematically the success of this procedure, which has been used widely in collision prob-

ability problems<sup>\*</sup>. In our case, n = 3 was found to give an adequate compromise between speed and precision.

Hence, (56) is replaced by

$$P^* \approx \frac{1}{16\pi 2a} \sum_{i=1}^{8} \frac{64}{w_i} \sum_{j=1}^{64} (a_{\eta_j}, a_j)$$
(59)

where  $\mathbf{w}_i$  and  $\mathbf{w}_i$  are given below

<b>i</b>	<sup>η</sup> .i	
1	0.001992	0. 003295
2	0.020842	0. 017843
3	0. 082268	0. 045439
4	0.206855	0. 079200
5	0. 394469	0.106047
6	0.617311	0. 112506
7	0. 825693	0. 091119
8	0, 964756	0. 044551

We go a step further in refining the formula for  $P^{*}$  by reducing the discretization error. We observe that an expression quite similar to (59) exists for  $P_{o}$ :

$$P_{o} \approx \frac{1}{16\pi 2a} \sum_{i=1}^{8} w_{i} \sum_{j=1}^{64} \Psi_{o}(a \eta_{i}, a_{j})$$
(60)

where  $\phi_0$  is the function  $\phi(y, a)$  appropriate for an isolated fuel rod; (54) gives

The method should presumably be credited to B. Tollander and I Carlvik, Sweten: the answer of the state with the back and we - 46 -

$$\Phi_{0}(\mathbf{y},\mathbf{a}) = \mathrm{Ki}_{3}(0) - \mathrm{Ki}_{3}(\tau) = \frac{\pi}{4} - \mathrm{Ki}_{3}(\tau)$$
(61)

As we already have an efficient algorithm for  $P_0$  to our disposal we recast (59) to the following form

$$P^{*} \approx \frac{\sum_{i=1}^{8} \sum_{j=1}^{64} \psi(a_{i_{i}}, a_{j})}{\sum_{i=1}^{8} \sum_{j=1}^{64} \varphi_{o}(a_{i_{i}}, a_{j})} \cdot P_{o}$$
(62)

Formula (62) has the further advantage of yielding the exact limit  $P_0$  when the cell expands towards the isolated fuel rod.

The evaluation of the Ki<sub>3</sub>-functions is performed by the function subprogram BIC3, developed originally by B. Tollander in connection with Carlvik's work<sup>6</sup>). This procedure zeros Ki<sub>3</sub>(x) for  $x \ge 10$ , and this leads to a natural truncation of the infinite series in (54).

The calculation technique suggested in this Appendix has been programmed as to form the subroutine PINCA. PINCA delivers the 46  $P^{\bullet}$ values discussed earlier. Computation of  $P^{\bullet}(\zeta)$  by linear interpolation in the 1/P <sup>\*</sup>-table so constructed is done by another subprogram, PS. For  $\zeta \ge 6$  PS uses the approximation<sup>2</sup>

A second state of the second stat

$$\mathbf{P}^{*}(\zeta) \approx \mathbf{P}^{*}(6) \cdot \frac{6}{\zeta}$$

(63)

Sec. Sec. 3.

The evaluation of the integral (31) is carried out by a special, selective integration routine SELIN. This was found useful because the integrand in (31) varies rather sharply around the resonance energy; as one wishes to limit the number N of integrand computations (here, N  $\approx$  1000 was chosen) it is important to make a selective choice of the corresponding N abscissas.

SELIN does this in a crude, yet adequate manner. It works roughly in such a way that it divides the integration interval in a coarse equidistant subdivision. Thereafter, each of these subintervals  $\delta_{ij}$ ,  $m_i$  is submitted to a further subdivision in  $m_i$  new subintervals  $\delta_{ij}$ ,  $m_i$  being roughly proportional to the derivative of the integrand at  $\Delta_i$ . Finally, Simpson's rule is applied to all subintervals and the results added. SELIN is in no way an "optimal" routine, but has nevertheless proved useful in the calculation of various definite integrals with a pronounced variation of the integrand.

SELIN is here supplied with function values from the function subprogram FCT.

#### 17. APPENDIX VII: A FAST EXPONENTIAL ROUTINE

During the Monte Carlo calculations performed by MCSUP it is frequently required to calculate the exponential  $e^{-X}$ , or, more often, the function  $1 - e^{-X}$ . Of course the standard exponential function available at the computer may be applied, but in view of the rather limited demands for precision in Monte Carlo calculations it is better policy to use a faster routine and sacrify some accuracy. Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2)</sup> recommend the use of the so-called g-function defined by

 $g(x) = \frac{x}{1 - e^{-x}}$ 

(64)

After tabulating g(x) from e. g. 0 to 7 with steps of 0.2 it is possible by linear interpolation to calculate g(x) to an accuracy within 0.1%. For x ) 7 they set 1 -  $e^{|x|}$  equal to one.

Another alternative is to construct a simple polynomial approximation of  $1 - e^{-X}$  and this method performes quite well on the IBM 7094 and was

والوترجي وربوته وممر دورا تحادد مدارد والمتداد ال	والكهيميمين بتدبوه متكهيهم	an an a suit a
5. 35, 6-4	4- <sub>01</sub> ⊺.¤	tratestion error
4 8E . I	ð	Survey or the
1))	L	and a second and a

adopted in MCSUP as the function subprogram OEXP. It was decided to divide the interval 0  $\langle x \rangle$  8 in four intervals in such a manner that third order polynomials chosen in the best possible way would yield absolute errors of almost the same magnitude in the four intervals. "Best possible" is understood in the Chebyshev sense, i.e. one minimizes the max. absolute error in each interval. The relevant approximation formula is given by Lance<sup>7</sup>:

$$\exp(kx) = I_0(k) + 2 \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} I_n(k) T_n(x), -1 \le x \le 1$$
 (65)

where  $I_n$  is the modified Bessel function of first kind and order n, while  $T_n(x)$  is the Chebyshev polynomial of degree n. By truncating (65) at  $T_3$  and making a variable transformation, this formula yields the polynomial coefficients. After some numerical experimentation the interval subdivision and coefficients stated in OEXP (Appendix III) was obtained. The OEXP approximations are not quite those of the Chebyshev type, because small constant terms had been added in order to keep the mean arithmetic error in the whole range 0  $\langle x \langle 8 \text{ as low as possible, whereby } \rangle_0^{\infty} e^{-x} dx$  calculated by OEXP becomes 1 with a high degree of precision (OEXP sets 1-e^{-x} equal to one for  $x \rangle 8$ ).

The performance of the g-function method (G) and OEXP has been measured on an IBM 7094 (model I) with the result shown in the table below.

G OEXP netto time (µS) for a single call 240 180 1.2710-4 root-mean-square error 1,1010-4 2.3710-4 3.0110-4 max. error .0.90 abscissa for max. error 0, 96 -0. 7310-4 10-8 mean arithmetic error 0. 73 10-4 1.1310-4 mean absolute error 9.110-4. 3. 8510-4 truncation error 1.9310-4 zero value ۵

The time for a call of the IBM 7094 standard function  $1 - e^{-X}$  was found to 262  $\mu$ S.

#### 18. APPENDIX VIII: OPTIMIZATION OF COMPUTER TIME FOR THE FOUR TYPES OF STARTERS

The resonance absorption rate was in sec. 3 expressed as the sum of 5 terms (eq. (40)), where one is deterministic and the remaining four are Monte Carlo terms. The combined Monte Carlo expression

$$\mathbf{R} = -\mathbf{I}_1 - \mathbf{I}_2 + \mathbf{I}_3 + \mathbf{I}_4 = \mathbf{R}_1 + \mathbf{R}_2 + \mathbf{R}_3 + \mathbf{R}_4$$
(66)

was composed of four mutually independent terms to be calculated separately according to the principles laid down in sec. 3. Now, some possibilities exist for carrying out a more refined composition of the terms in (66). Spanier and Gelbard<sup>2)</sup> propose a sampling technique, where the initial energy E is sampled from a combined density function, derived from the four individual density functions, whereafter the category of starter is selected. This procedure implies saving of computer storage.

In our case, small computing time rather than storage saving is at a premium, and then another approach is feasible.

We still calculate the four terms in (66) separately, but we assume that a certain amount of computer time T is at our disposal and try to find a division

 $T = T_1 + T_2 + T_3 + T_4 , (67)$ 

(68)

where  $T_i$  is the time spent in calculation of  $R_i$ , so that a minimum-variance estimate of R is obtained. We have

$$\sigma^2(\mathbf{R}) \star \sum_{\mathbf{i}}^4 \sigma^2(\mathbf{R}_{\mathbf{i}})$$

At this point we assume that

- 49 -

$$\sigma^2(\mathbf{R_i}) = \frac{\mathbf{k_i}}{\mathbf{T_i}}$$

where the  $k_i$  are known positive constants. Hence we minimize the functional

$$\Psi(T_1, T_2, T_3, T_4) = \sum_{i=1}^{4} \frac{k_i}{T_i}$$
 (70)

under the constraint (67). The method of Lagrange's multipliers yields easily the solution

In practice we have to estimate the  $k_i$ . This is done in MCSUP by applying a preliminary computation with time length T<sup>1</sup> distributed equally with  $T_i^{1} = \frac{T}{4}$  to each type of starters. Preliminary variance estimates

$$\sigma_i^{\prime 2} \equiv \sigma^2(\mathbf{R}_i^{\prime})$$

are used to calculate k, as

$$k_i = T_i' \sigma_i^2$$

Now (71) is recast to

 $\mathbf{T}_{\mathbf{i}} = \frac{\sigma_{\mathbf{i}}^{*}}{\sum_{i=1}^{3} \sigma_{\mathbf{i}}^{*}} \cdot \mathbf{T}$ 

(73)

(72)

(69)

(71)

(74)

Hereafter the main calculation is executed. Utilizing also the preliminary calculation, we have

$$\mathbf{T}_{i}^{\prime\prime} = \mathbf{T}_{i} - \mathbf{T}_{i}^{\prime} \tag{75}$$

where  $T_i''$  is the time spent in calculation of  $R_i$  in the main calculation. The MCSUP program uses  $T' = \frac{T}{4}$  and with this choice we finally obtain

$$\mathbf{T}_{i}^{''} = \left(\frac{\sigma_{i}^{'}}{\sum_{i} \sigma_{i}^{i}} - \frac{1}{16}\right) \mathbf{T}$$
(76)

#### 19. APPENDIX IX: COMPUTER DEPENDENT FEATURES OF MCSUP

MCSUP in its present form is intended for use on the IBM 7094 at the NEUCC center in Lyngby, Denmark. In view of the possibility of its use on other computers, we give in this appendix those features of the code that are specific for our system, and which perhaps have to be implemented in other ways for other machines.

#### 19.1. The Timing Routine

It is essential that a timing routine is available. The call is of the type

#### CALL TIME (ICLOCK)

where the integer ICLOCK measures the computer time in units of 1/60 sec. The actual position of the zero on the time scale is irrelevant for our purpose.

#### 19.2. The Random Number Generator

The random number calls are of the type

- 51 -

# CALL RANDL (IX, R)

In our case, a standard multiplicative generator  $^{23)}$  is used. IX is a current integer and is not used (yet it has to be initialized, cf. the input description in 6.1). R is the resulting random number between 0 and 1.

# 19.3. Input/Output Units

The symbolic nos. of the input and output units are 5 and 6 for the IBM 7094 at NEUCC. Only the statements

NIN = 5NOUT = 6

(at the beginning of the code print-out, cf. Appendix III) should be changed to fit other conventions.



